NRPRRRRRRRRP R
CQOWONOUIRAWNROOOMNOUITRWN K

WWWWNNNNNNNDNN
WNPFPOOWOONOOITRWN P

W W w
o 01 b

AR DDOLOW
~NOoO OB WNREFPOWOOW-N

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/03/07-FINAL Page 1 of 4

LONDONDERRY, NH PLANNING BOARD
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JANUARY 3, 2007 AT THE MOOSE HILL COUNCIL

CHAMBERS

7:00 PM: Members Present: Art Rugg; Rick Brideau, Ex-Officio; Joe Paradis, Ex-Officio;
Charles Tilgner, Ex-Officio; Paul DiMarco; Rob Nichols; Lynn Wiles, alternate member; John
Farrell (arrived at 7:23)

Also Present: Tim Thompson, AICP; John Trottier, P.E.; Cathy Dirsa, Planning Department
Secretary

A. Rugg called the meeting to order at 7:01 PM. A. Rugg appointed L. Wiles to vote for
M.Soares.

Administrative Board Work

A.

O

Regional Impact Determinations

T. Thompson summarized the staff memo recommending that all 3 projects (Chester Hall
subdivision, Buttrick Rd Medical condominium conversion, and Ravenna Plaza are not of
regional impact.

P. DiMarco made a motion to find the 3 projects are not of regional impact. C.
Tilgner seconded the motion. No discussion. Vote on the motion: 7-0-0

Approval of Minutes — December 6 & 13

P. DiMarco made a motion to approve the minutes from the December 6 meeting.
J. Paradis seconded the motion. No discussion. Vote on the motion: 7-0-0.

P. DiMarco made a motion to approve the minutes from the December 13 meeting.
R. Brideau seconded the motion. No discussion. Vote on the motion: 6-0-1 (L.Wiles
was absent at the 12/13 meeting and abstained).

Minutes are approved and will be signed at the January 10 meeting.

Discussions with Town Staff — Reid Development LLC — Roof/Architectural Change

T. Thompson said there were no concerns on the original application by the Heritage
Commission.

Roof pitch is changing and will not be a flat roof. Consensus from the board was that this
would not require a public hearing.

T. Thompson said the agenda for January 10 will include a conservation subdivision
ordinance workshop, which may need be moved out 1 month due to the amount of items
currently on the agenda, if the Board feels the agenda is too full. A. Rugg said we should
move it to the February 14 meeting. He also said he plans on moving the public hearing
on elderly housing ordinance on January 10 to beginning of meeting due to the abutters
that might be attending that meeting.



NRRRRRRRRP R
COWONOUIRAWNROOONOUTRWN K

NDNDNDDNNDN
OO WN PR

WWWWN NN
WN PO WO

W W w
o 01 b

P o i o D~ S N YN N OS]
OCOoO~NOUITRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

o1 a
- O

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/03/07-FINAL Page 2 of 4

Public Hearings

A.

Terra Firma Real Estate, Map 15, Lot 3 - Application Acceptance and Public Hearing for
a 2 lot subdivision and a Conditional Use Permit. - Request Continuance to February
7,2007. [ Elizabeth Meadows subdivision ]

T. Thompson said George Chadwick, engineer from ECM, has requested a continuance.

P. DiMarco made a motion to continue the application acceptance and public
hearing to February 7 at 7PM. R. Nichols seconded the motion. No discussion. Vote
on the motion: 8-0-0. A.Rugg said this has been continued to February 7 and this will
be the only public notice.

Tarkka Homes, Map 15, Lot 215-1 - Application Acceptance and Public Hearing for a
Site Plan and Conditional Use Permit to construct a 44 unit Elderly Housing
development. - Request Continuance to February 7, 2007. [ Cider Mill, site plan ]

T. Thompson said Todd Connors, engineer from Sublime Civil Consultants, has
requested a continuance.

P. DiMarco made a motion to continue the application acceptance and public
hearing to February 7 at 7PM. R. Nichols seconded the motion. No discussion. Vote
on the motion: 8-0-0.

A. Rugg said this has been continued to February 7 and this will be the only public
notice.

Elmer A. Pease, Il, Map 10, Lot 92 - Continued Application Acceptance and Public
Hearing for a 2 lot Subdivision. [ Hillside elderly housing, subdivision ]

T. Thompson said the sewer discharge permit has not been obtained, and is a checklist
item. Based upon the information available to date the and since all checklist items are
not complete, Staff recommends 3 alternatives:

1. The application be found to be incomplete; or

2. The Applicant can withdraw to Pre-Application Design Review; or

3. The Board can continue the application acceptance and public hearing to a future
meeting date.

Elmer Pease, applicant, feels that given the amount of comments and the short length of
time to satisfy the comments he said he is frustrated and feels that the process is not fair.
J. Trottier said there are two sides to this situation. He said the applicant also needs to
work with the staff within a reasonable time.

[ J.Farrell arrived at 7:23 PM ] Vote will now include 8 people.

T. Thompson said outside of the sewer discharge permit the project is close to being
ready.

L. Wiles asked about the sewer discharge permit and said he would like to see the
permit.

Consensus of the Board was that option 3 is best.

J. Trottier said most people will work through the design review process and when it gets
down to the last few comments the applicant converts to a formal application. With all



NRPRRRRRRRRPRE R
COWONOUIRAWNROOONOUTRWNRF

NN
N -

NN NN
[op N5 RN OV)

WWWWN NN
WN PO WO

W W w
o 01 b

P o i o D~ S N YN N OS]
OCOoO~NOUITRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

a
o

o1 ol
N -

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/03/07-FINAL Page 3 of 4

due respect he suggested the applicant work through the design review process before
continuing it to another meeting.

J. Farrell suggested letting the abutters speak on the application. T. Thompson said it
would be preferable for the planning board to hear from the abutters after the application
is accepted as complete.

E. Pease said he will meet with the abutters outside of this meeting.

T. Thompson suggested a continuance to February 7 for the subdivision, as there are
only a few comments left other than the sewer discharge permit.

J. Farrell made a motion to continue the application acceptance and public hearing
to the February 7 meeting at 7PM. R. Brideau seconded the motion. No discussion.
Vote on the motion: 8-0-0.

A. Rugg said this project is continued to the February 7 meeting and that this will be the
only public notice.

Elmer A. Pease, Il, Map 10, Lot 92 - Continued Application Acceptance and Public
Hearing for a Site Plan and Conditional Use Permit for the construction of a 50 unit
Elderly Housing development. [ Hillside elderly housing, site plan ]

T. Thompson said 2 permits have not been obtained and there are 2 other checklist
items still outstanding. Based upon the information available to date and since all
checklist items are not complete, Staff recommends 3 alternatives:

1. The application be found to be incomplete; or

2. The Applicant can withdraw to Pre-Application Design Review; or

3. The Board can continue the application acceptance and public hearing to a future
meeting date.

T. Thompson strongly recommended that the Applicant go back to design review and
work with the staff to address the comments, and outlined the major outstanding design
review issues:

1. 16 items from last month’s memo were responded to by the applicant’s
engineer as issues that are “pending.” This includes several items related to
the off-site improvements, including verification from impacted property owners
that they agree to the proposed improvements proposed on their lots.

2. The applicant has not addressed the required phasing of this project under
Section 1.3 of the Zoning Ordinance. The applicant has indicated that he will
not restrict occupancy to 100% elderly (all occupants over age 55). Without
100% elderly restriction on the project, the Zoning Ordinance calls for the
project to be phased (15 units per year). The applicant needs to provide
phasing plans and information in accordance with the Ordinance, or obtain a
variance from the ZBA.

3. There are a number of issues related to the drainage report and the off-site
improvements that remain unresolved.

E. Pease agreed he will go back through the design review process providing he gets
comments back from the engineer sooner than 90 days. He would like to see the
engineer’'s comments being communicated in a more timely manner.

T. Thompson said providing there is sufficient escrow to cover the engineer’s review he
feels confident the design review can occur within 90 days.



NRRRRRRRRP R
COWONOUIRAWNROOONOUTRWNRF

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

NN DN
© 00

w W
= O

w
N

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/03/07-FINAL Page 4 of 4

Matt Peterson, Woodland Design, said the 16 comments are related to the offsite
improvements.

J. Paradis, J. Farrell & A. Rugg said they would like to see the timeline on the whole
process for projects. [Planning Dept provided this info to the Planning Board on 1/4/07.]
T. Thompson said if they go back to pre-application review , abutters would need to be
renotified by certified mail once the application is submitted for a formal application
again.

E. Pease requested to withdraw his application and resubmit.

A. Rugg said the applicant is withdrawing the application and there will not be a February
7 meeting to discuss this. The Applicant will resubmit his application for design review.
When the project is ready to go before the Planning Board for a public hearing the
abutters will be notified.

Other Business

Adjournment:

J. Farrell made a motion to adjourn the meeting. R. Brideau seconded the motion. No
discussion. Vote on the motion: 8-0-0. Meeting adjourned at 7:50 PM.

These minutes prepared by Cathy Dirsa, Planning Department Secretary.

Respectfully Submitted,

Mavy Wing Seaves

Assistant Secretary



PRRRRRR R
O~NOUIRARWNRPROOONOUIRWN K

19

NDNDNDNNDNDN
OO WNEFO

WWWWN NN
WN P OWOWOoN

W W w
o 01 b

P o i ol D~ S N YN N O]
OCOoO~NOUIRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

a
o

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 1 of 14

LONDONDERRY, NH PLANNING BOARD

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JANUARY 10, 2007 AT THE MOOSE HILL COUNCIL
CHAMBERS

7:00 PM: Members Present: Art Rugg; Paul DiMarco; Rick Brideau, Ex-Officio (arrived at 7:58
PM); Charles Tilgner, P.E., Ex-Officio; Tom Freda (arrived at 8:00 PM); Lynn Wiles, alternate
member, Joe Paradis, Ex-Officio; Rob Nichols

Also Present: André Garron, AICP; Tim Thompson, AICP; John Trottier, P.E.; Cathy Dirsa,
Planning Department Secretary

A. Rugg called the meeting to order at 7:04 PM. A. Rugg appointed L. Wiles to vote for
J.Farrell.

Vote 6-0-0

Administrative Board Work

A.  Signing of Minutes — December 6 & 13
Minutes for December 6 and 13 have been signed.
B. Discussions with Town Staff - Project Review Timelines

A. Garron met with the Manchester Regional Chamber of Commerce regarding the “Metro
Center” for economic development. He said they are looking for the town to support it so
they can move forward. They hope to achieve coordination & regionalism.

T. Thompson addressed the issue re. project timelines. He gave a brief overview of the
current process & gave suggestions for the future (See Attachment 1)

A. Rugg asked if state permits would be included in the process. T. Thompson stated it
would be difficult to track a timeline on those, since we do not know when applicants apply
for the state permits.

A. Garron said the regulations were organized in 2001 and the developers in the area
were asked for their input for the revised regulations before they were adopted. He also
said that frequently the comments that transpire between the engineer and the developer
happen without our involvement. The process has worked well.

T. Thompson reviewed the past process (pre-2001 regulations) compared to the current
one and said that the difference is significant. The new process has increased the
efficiency of the design reviews prior to going before the Planning Board.

C. Tilgner asked if the Planning Board could be advised when comments have been
repeated for multiple times in staff/Vollmer review memos. T. Thompson said that Vollmer
used to put an asterisk next to the comments that are addressed more than once. He said
that Vollmer could certainly go back to that process (* = once, ** = twice, etc.). A. Rugg
said they would like to resume that process.

A. Garron said it's within the applicant’s rights to request a meeting with the Planning
Board prior to going forward with a Formal Application.

A. Garron said the current project tracking has been in place for over a year and can be
accessed through the map tools system on our website.



NRRRRRRRRP R
COWONOUIRAWNROOONOUTRWNRF

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

WWWWN NN
WN P OWOoN

W W w
o 01 b

P o i o D~ S N VS N O]
OCOO~NOUITRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

a
o

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 2 of 14

Public Hearings

A.

Elderly Housing Ordinance Amendments - Public Hearing

A. Garron said they want to add an affordable elderly component to the ordinance.

He said staff has been working with the developers and the NH Housing Finance Authority
and HUD.

T. Thompson summarized the amendments to the ordinance, highlighting the changes
(Attachment 2).

Referencing the proposed cap on the number of Elderly Housing units, he said the
percentage is a moving target which would be re-evaluated each time the US Census is
taken.

P. DiMarco asked about 3.6.4.7.2 & 3.6.5.2.

R. Nichols asked about 3.6.4.5, parking. T.Thompson said when the calculation has a
fraction, we round up to the next whole number.

R. Nichols also asked about 3.6.4.7.2. T.Thompson said density requirements will drive it.
R. Nichols also asked about 3.6.5.2. T.Thompson said it's easier to track a rental situation
rather than buying. A.Garron said the HUD representative said they will ensure the long
term affordability is there.

R. Nichols 3.6.6.1 asked about the percent. T.Thompson said it's 13% of our total
population is over the age of 55, then 13% of the housing stock is what we would permit
for elderly housing.

L. Wiles referenced section 3.6.6.1 and asked what percent we're at today regarding
elderly housing. A. Garron said there are currently 475 built, 500 under construction or
proposed, equal to about 10-11% of the current housing stock. He said that includes the
current proposed project from J. DeCarolis.

A. Garron said demographics can change that number.

L. Wiles asked about the definition for 3.6.3. T.Thompson said a definition of elderly
housing is in the definition section of the ordinance, section 4.7.

A. Rugg asked for public input.

John Michels said he is pleased with what the staff has presented.

Mike Brown, resident, Carousel Court, said he is also pleased with what has been
presented. He feels the percentage is higher than surrounding communities and he is glad
about that. He asked if this is separate that GMO. T.Thompson said elderly housing is
exempt from phasing providing it's restricted to 100% occupancy by persons 55 or older.
Elderly housing is still counted in the permit caps in years of “Unsustainable Growth” and
receives priority in the scoring system of the GMO. M. Brown asked if this cap is what
we're looking for so we don't get out of balance. T.Thompson said yes, this is the intent.

P. DiMarco made a motion that we recommend to the town council that they adopt
the elderly housing changes to the zoning ordinance. L. Wiles seconded the motion.
No discussion. Vote on the motion: 6-0-0. Amendments are recommended to the
Town Council.

DHB Homes, Inc. - Tax Map 6, Lot 34 - Continued Public Hearing for a site plan to
construct 23,940 sq.ft of professional office space.

{R. Brideau arrived at 7:58pm. Vote will now include 7 people.}
{T. Freda arrived at 8pm. Vote will now include 8 people.}



NRRRRRRRRP R
COWONOUIRAWNROOONOUTRWNRF

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

WWWWN NN
WN P OWOoN

W W w
o 01 b

P o i o D~ S N YN N OS]
OCOoO~NOUITRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

a
o

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 3 of 14

T. Thompson reminded the board that this plan was already accepted as complete.

Lynn Zebrowski, engineer from Keach-Nordstrom, presented their plans.

She said electricity to the development will not come from lines on Buttrick Road, but be
routed underground from lines on the south side of Rte 102. The septic systems will be
raised up more than the original plans showed. Building 1 has been raised. She said they
have agreements from abutters to increase the sight distance for the entrance to this site.
J. Trottier read the DPW memo with staff recommendations.

T. Thompson said staff recommends conditional approval. He also recommended that the
board especially check the lighting for this plan. He said the applicant has responded to all
traffic comments, but the report needs to be revised to reflect all of the changes through
the review of the project. A. Garron said we do have a lot of people that come into the
Planning Dept. to review the plans and he said the form that the latest traffic report came
in could be confusing for people to review. One document with all the changes included
within the general text is what we prefer to have on file. He said that the Southern NH
Planning Commission reviewed the proposed connection between Rt. 102 and Buttrick
Road through the applicant property, as identified in the Rt. 102 Central Corridor plan.
They noted in their report that the connection would be beneficial to Londonderry.
Unfortunately, no action by the Town was taken when this project was identified in the
Corridor plan in the mid-90, therefore, would be unfair to the applicant to impose it now.
L. Wiles said he feels the lighting needs to be addressed and the stockade fence should
be extended. L. Zebrowski said they could not extend the stockade fence do to the
proposed rip rap slopes in that area.

Bob Meisner, DHB Homes, said they met with the abutter on site and said that she
realizes the stockade fence can’t be used. She also now understands the site plan better
after visiting the site.

R. Nichols expressed concern regarding the lack of handicapped parking on the south side
of the center building. L.Zebrowski said the main entrances to the buildings will have
handicap parking, and the south side will be for loading.

P. DiMarco asked about truck access to the buildings. L. Zebrowski said they would need
to add curb cuts to allow sufficient access for loading zones for the buildings.

J. Paradis asked about design review #4. T.Thompson said if the DOT standards require
it, they would need to install guardrails.

A. Rugg asked about pedestrian traffic. L. Zebrowski said there are currently no plans for
crosswalks between the buildings. She said they can plan crosswalks between the
handicap spaces.

A. Rugg asked for public input.

Peter Aucoin, abutter, asked if they needs building permits for the items that the applicant
plans to install on his property. J. Trottier said a permit is not needed providing the fence
doesn’'t exceed 6 feet. J. Trottier said once everything is worked out between P. Aucoin
and the applicant, the final plans will go back to the Planning Dept. for review.

P. Aucoin asked about the lighting. P. DiMarco said they're asking the applicant to adjust
the lighting so it won't affect P. Aucoin.

Chet Ham, Peabody Row, asked if there will be any trees and/or stone walls removed.
He is concerned that we are compromising the aesthetic look in the area.

L. Zebrowski said they plan to maintain the stone walls (reconstructing a small section if
necessary) and that there really aren't any trees to be removed. J. Trottier said the stone
wall will be a defined wall, not stones pushed back.

A. Garron mentioned impact fees (police impact fee. & traffic)



NRRRRRRRRP R
COWONOUIRARWNROOONOUTRAWN K

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

WWWWN NN
WN P OWOoN

W W w
o 01 b

P o i o D~ S N YN N OS]
OCOoO~NOUITRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 4 of 14

P.DiMarco made a motion to conditionally approve the site plan with the following
conditions:

"Applicant”, herein, refers to the property owner, business owner, or organization
submitting this application and to his/its agents, successors, and assigns.

PRECEDENT CONDITIONS

All of the precedent conditions below must be met by the Applicant, at the expense of the
Applicant, prior to certification of the plans by the Planning Board. Certification of the plans
is required prior to commencement of any site work, any construction on the site or
issuance of a building permit.

1.

The Applicant’s revised lighting plan, sheet 10, appears to indicate lighting levels will
exceed 0.2 foot-candles along the driveway entrance in a few locations along the
property lines at abutting lots 29 and 30, which does not comply with section 3.13 of
the regulations. The Applicant shall revise the design as necessary to comply with
the regulations.

The revised pre and post development comparison table provided in the revised
project drainage report indicates flow to lot 34-1 only to the north. However, the table
does not address the impact to abutting lot 28-1, which is also an abutter to the north.
The Applicant shall update the pre-and post development comparison table as
necessary to clarify the impacts to each abutting lot as typically requested by the
Town. The Applicant shall verify compliance with the regulations (no increase in
runoff).

The Applicant notes the site is designed for small box truck delivery vehicles (SU-30)
in note 6 on sheet 2 and has indicated loading area with this submission. It appears
this vehicle would have difficulty negotiating the site through the site driveways and
parking areas to the designated loading areas. The Applicant shall submit Auto-Turn
schematics for the delivery routes to the site and all proposed loading areas to clarify
the site is adequately design for a SU-30 vehicle as typically requested by the Town.

The revised grading design includes additional 2H:1V slopes adjacent to parking lots
and travel lanes that would appear to require guardrail. The Applicant shall review
and provide guardrail, if necessary, with appropriate details for proper construction.

The Applicant shall indicate the size, type, valves, and service locations of the
proposed gas lines that serve the proposed propane tanks on the utility plan. The
Applicant noted in her response that the size will be determined later but the utility
letter provided indicates a 1” line is necessary. The Applicant shall revise
accordingly.

The Applicant shall provide a professional endorsement (stamp and signature) for the
sight distance certification on sheet 12. In addition, The Applicant shall provide a
professional endorsement (stamp and signature) on sheets 11 and 13-17 in the plan
set.



el ol
WNNRPOOWO~NOUTRWN P

N el el e el
CQwmom~N oulh

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

WWWWN NN
WN P OWOoN

w
S

ARG WWW
O~NOOTPRRWNEFE OO O Ol

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 5 of 14

7.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The Applicant’s revised traffic report submitted has not been revised to incorporate
the comments into the updated report as previously requested by the Town. The
comments and responses have only been attached as sections. This creates a report
that is difficult to follow and to know what has changed. The Applicant indicated that a
submission of this type provides a “chain of events that led to the approval of the
traffic study.” However, the “chain of events” is already documented in the Town’s
files. The updated and complete traffic study, as requested by the Town, allows non-
technical individuals to understand the impacts the development will have on the
roadway network. The Applicant shall revise the traffic report to incorporate the
revisions and comments from the review into a complete, revised and updated traffic
report to the Planning Department for the Town'’s file. The revised, updated and
complete traffic report shall be stamped by a professional engineer licensed in New
Hampshire as required by the regulations.

The applicant shall provide pedestrian crosswalks on the plan as directed by the
Planning Board, and provide any appropriate pavement marking details in the plan
set as necessary.

Outside consultant’s fees shall be paid within 30 days of approval of plan.

Note all waivers and the conditional use permit granted on the plan.

The Applicant shall provide a digital (electronic) copy of the complete final plan sent
to the Town at the time of signature by the Board in accordance with Section 2.05.n
of the regulations.

Financial guaranty if necessary.

Final engineering review

PLEASE NOTE - Once these precedent conditions are met and the plans are certified

the approval is considered final. If these conditions are not met within 120 days to the day
of the meeting at which the Planning Board grants conditional approval the board's
approval will be considered to have lapsed and re-submission of the application will be
required. See RSA 674:39 on vesting.

GENERAL AND SUBSEQUENT CONDITIONS

All of the conditions below are attached to this approval.

1.

No construction or site work for the amended site plan may be undertaken
until the pre-construction meeting with Town staff has taken place, filing of an
NPDES-EPA Permit and the site restoration financial guaranty is in place with
the Town. Contact the Department of Public Works to arrange for this meeting.

The project must be built and executed exactly as specified in the approved
application package unless modifications are approved by the Planning Department
& Department of Public Works, or if staff deems applicable, the Planning Board.



NRRRRRRRRP R
COWONOUIRAWNROOONOUTRWNRF

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

WWWWN NN
WN PO WO

W W w
o 01 b

P o i o D~ S N YN N OS]
OCOoO~NOUITRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 6 of 14

O

3. All of the documentation submitted in the application package by the Applicant and
any requirements imposed by other agencies are part of this approval unless
otherwise updated, revised, clarified in some manner, or superseded in full or in part.
In the case of conflicting information between documents, the most recent
documentation and this notice herein shall generally be determining.

4.  All site improvements must be completed prior to the issuance of a certificate of
occupancy. In accordance with Section 6.01.d of the Site Plan Regulations, in
circumstances that prevent landscaping to be completed (due to weather conditions
or other unique circumstance), the Building Department may issue a certificate of
occupancy prior to the completion of landscaping improvements, if agreed upon by
the Planning & Public Works Departments, when a financial guaranty (see forms
available from the Public Works Department) and agreement to complete
improvements are placed with the Town. The landscaping shall be completed within
6 months from the issuance of the certificate of occupancy, or the Town shall utilize
the financial guaranty to contract out the work to complete the improvements as
stipulated in the agreement to complete landscaping improvements. No other
improvements shall be permitted to use a financial guaranty for their
completion for purposes of receiving a certificate of occupancy.

5. As built site plans must to be submitted to the Public Works Department prior to the
release of the Applicant’s financial guaranty.

6.  Allrequired Police Facility and Traffic impact fees must be paid prior to the issuance
of a Certificate of Occupancy.

It is the responsibility of the Applicant to obtain all other local, state, and federal permits,
licenses, and approvals which may be required as part of this project (that were not
received prior to certification of the plans). Contact the Building Department at extension
115 regarding building permits.

R.Brideau seconded the motion. No discussion. Vote on the motion: 8-0-0. Plan is
conditionally approved.

Sanborn Road Realty, LCC, Map 15, Lot 87-1 - Continued Public Hearing for a waiver to
Site Plan Regulations for the conditionally approved 96 unit apartment project.

John Cronin & Deb Brewster presented their plans.

J. Cronin said they want to waive the site plan fees and move forward with the project.

A. Garron said the legal counsel (Attorney Mayer) said the planning board can grant the
waivers to allow the plan to be signed without financial guaranty in place, but suggested
doing so with appropriate notes placed on the plan. Even if the applicant were to submit a
financial guaranty to cover the on and offsite improvements, RSA 674:39 states that Active
and Substantial improvement must take place as well to gain the four year exemption from
any changes to the regulations.

L. Wiles asked for the difference between the two choices.
A. Garron said Surety is an insurance mechanism to cover the on and offsite
improvements.



NRRRRRRRRP R
COWONOUIRAWNROOONOUTRWNRF

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

WWWWN NN
WN PP OWOWOoN

W W w
o 01 b

P o i o D~ S N YN N OS]
OCOoO~NOUITRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 7 of 14

Letter of credit is cash set aside by a bank to the benefit of the Town ensure that the on
and offsite improvements are completed. The Town would not have to go through an
insurance company. A. Garron said whatever the board decides, the applicant will get one
year at best.

T. Freda asked what is the bank is looking for. J. Cronin said the bank wants to see signed
plans before they will give the applicant financing. He said they realize that the applicant
would lose if he doesn’t build within one year.

J. Paradis asked if the waivers would be only for that applicant and would not be used by
someone else, if the applicant sells the property before developing it.

J. Cronin said they would agree if the board wanted to personalize the waiver to only this
applicant.

C. Tilgner said he wouldn’t support it because he doesn't feel the town would be getting
anything in return.

P. DiMarco is uncomfortable with setting a precedence in granting this waiver. He is
concerned that others would try to do the same in the future. L.Wiles can’t support it.

A. Garron said he feels that this project has been planned for quite a while and he feels
the project itself would be beneficial to the Town given its economic development goals.
A. Garron suggested granting the applicant a waiver for one and a half to two years,
provided that financial guaranty is provided in accordance with the Town regulations. The
waiver is granted to the present applicant only, non-transferable. . Nichols asked if the
board should vote on the waiver now or collect the whole plan and get legal counsel
before voting.

A. Rugg asked for public input. None given.

J. Cronin agreed to continue and discuss the options with staff prior to going before the
board again.

P. DiMarco made a motion to continue to February 14, 2007 at 7PM. R. Nichols
seconded the motion. No discussion. Vote on the motion: 8-0-0.

A. Rugg said the hearing for this project is continued to February 14, 2007 at 7PM
and that this will be the only public notice.

Whittemore Estates, Map 12, Lot 59-3 - Public Hearing for a modification to a previously
granted waiver to Site Plan Regulations for the approved elderly housing project.

Jeff Rider, engineer Cuoco & Cormier presented their plans.

They are asking for a modification to a waiver to the previously approved site plan. They
have an offer on one of the units in Phase | of the project. The owner would like to delay
the installation of the final paving until the major improvements in Phase Il are completed
in order to minimize damage to the final pavement.

J. Trottier is asking what the applicant defines as major improvements. He said the
request is too generic.

J. Rider said major improvements would mean getting the foundations in the ground. He
would be happy to hear other things the board and staff might consider as major
improvements. J. Trottier cautioned the board that there will be people living there and
they would want to know why the final coat of pavement has not been applied.

Phil Budrose, Budrose Holdings, said he would post a letter of credit to the town for the
final coat of pavement. He said Sept. 15, 2007 is when Phase | is to be completed and
they could put down the final coat of pavement at that time.



NRRRRRRRR R
COWONOUIRARWNROOONOUTRAWN K

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

WWWWN NN
WN P OWOoN

W W w
o 01 b

P o i o D~ S N YN N OS]
OCOoO~NOUITRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

a
o

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 8 of 14

P.DiMarco made a motion to approve the modification to the waiver to a previously
approved site plan with the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall revise the phasing plan in the plan set to add the following notes:
a. The top coat of pavement for phase 1 shall be bonded for in accordance with
the requirements of the DPW, and that the top coat of pavement shall be
placed on site no later that September 15, 2007.
b. All other conditions of the waivers granted with the original approval of the
construction phasing plan shall apply.

J. Paradis seconded the motion. No discussion. Vote on the motion: 8-0-0. Motion
approved and modified waiver is conditionally approved.

Elliot Health Systems, Map 6, Lot 73 - Public Hearing for an amendment to a previously
approved Site Plan addressing various changes proposed to the approved plan.

Ken Rhodes, CLD Consulting and Adam Wagner, Cube3 Studios, presented their plans
They're adding curbing, handrails; changing sidewalks to allow for better traffic flow.
They want to change the location of the sign for better visibility.

J. Trottier is in support of the waiver. A. Garron said he was concerned about the up-
lighting until he saw it was directed at the sign. T. Thompson respectfully disagreed
because he said the regulations are for down-lighting, and he considers the proposed
lighting to be up lighting. He recommended the Heritage Commission review the proposed
changes.

A. Garron said there were concerns about the number of ambulance calls, but Dick
Anagnost, the Elliot's development consultant, is working with the town and provided a
letter to David Caron, Town Manager addressing the concern.

T. Thompson read the memo with staff recommendations, recommending conditional
approval.

P. DiMarco asked if they plan to keep a sign on the Buttrick Rd entrance. K. Rhodes said
they will have a small directory sign indicating the entrance on Buttrick Rd, as permitted by
the Zoning Ordinance.

R. Nichols asked about the changes regarding the sidewalks & minor engineering
changes.

T. Thompson said staff reviewed the changes internally and they were fine with them.

A. Rugg asked for public comment.

R. Saulnier has concerns about the drainage because he directly abuts the property.

K. Rhodes said the area for the propane tanks was cut into ledge and will not move. He
said the original plans were to have the propane tanks in the service area.

J. Paradis asked if the Fire Dept. could provide insight as to why they approved the
placement of the propane tanks. K. Rhodes said it would be helpful if the Fire Dept could
provide more information on this.

R. Saulnier said he would prefer that they move the propane tanks further away from his
property line. He said the tanks are very close to his house.

The board agreed that the applicant should provide R. Saulnier with the same info the Fire
Dept gave to them regarding the propane tanks.

Dick Anagnost, developer for the project was also present.

R. Saulnier said he is also concerned about the lighting which illuminates his home and
the lack of fencing between his home and the Elliot.



NRRRRRRRRP R
COWONOUIRAWNROOONOUTRWNRF

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

WWWWN NN
WN P OWOoN

W W w
o 01 b

A BEPRADDBEDPWLOW
QOO ~NOUITRRWNEFL,OWOOOL-N

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 9 of 14

R. Saulnier also said he is concerned about the increase in traffic on Buttrick Rd do to this
project and others on Buttrick Rd.

A. Garron said traffic was not looked at with the amendment to this plan because it had
been addressed previously. He suggested that we may look at that again for future
projects.

Scott Colby, resident on William Drive, agreed with R. Saulnier and his concerns about the
placement of the propane tanks. He also suggested they consider moving the tanks to the
land they own across the street. He also asked about the use of the basement area in
regards to the original plan. K.Rhodes said he is working with Jim Smith, building
inspector, to ensure that the use is clarified on the plans.

Barry Mazzaglia, abutter on Mammoth Rd, said he was never properly notified about this
project or the meetings.

He is concerned about the guardrails along his property line, the trees that were clear cut
even though a town representative said they were not supposed to clear cut the trees. He
is concerned about the noise from generators, etc. He has cracks in his foundation do to
the blasting for this project.

Sharron Cassidy, said she came to the town hall and checked with the town clerk for
verification of their mailing address. She was told that they had the correct mailing
address. The Assessor’s office also said they had the correct mailing address.

A. Garron explained the abutter notice process and said we will check our records.

K. Rhodes said the sign lighting will be reviewed. He said that they met with the
Mazzaglia’'s regarding the guardrails and moved ahead with the DOT approved plan
including the guardrails when an agreement with Mr. Mazzaglia could not be reached.
Anagnost said they had not over blasted and stated a pre & post blast survey was done.
He said were not notified of any damage due to blasting.

B. Mazzaglia said for clarification, that they clear cut the trees in the buffer area, even
though they weren’t supposed to.

R. Saulnier said he also didn’t receive notification for the Oct. 2005 meeting.

He also requested again that they move the propane tanks to a safer area, further away
from his home.

A. Garron clarified that abutter notices are sent out for the public hearing of projects. If
projects are continued no additional abutter notices are sent. The Chairman announces
that the meeting will be continued and that this will be the only public notice.

L. Wiles would like to see what the Fire Dept gave to the applicant regarding the propane
tanks.

R. Nichols asked about the regulations regarding blasting.

B. Mazzaglia said the blasting company only came to their house after they had blasted
A. Garron produced for the board the certified mail receipt with Barry Mazzaglia’'s
signature that he received the abutter notice which was sent in September 2005 for the
Planning Board meeting.

K. Rhodes said the landscaping, grading, etc. is consistent with the plans.

P.DiMarco made a motion to grant the waiver request per the letter submitted by
the applicant and the recommendation from Staff, conditioned that a financial
guarantee be in place for the finish coat of pavement, and also that the finish coat of
pavement be placed on site no later than 5/1/08. J. Paradis seconded the motion.
No discussion. Vote on the motion: 7-1-0. Waiver granted.

P. DiMarco made a motion to amend the previously conditionally approved site plan
with the following conditions:



NRRRRRRRRP R
COWONOUIRAWNROOONOUIRWNRF

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

WWWWN NN
WN P OWOoN

W W w
o 01 b

P o o i o el L S N VS N OS]
OCO~NOUITRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

a
o

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 10 of 14

"Applicant”, herein, refers to the property owner, business owner, or organization
submitting this application and to his/its agents, successors, and assigns.

PRECEDENT CONDITIONS

All of the precedent conditions below must be met by the applicant, at the expense of the
applicant, prior to certification of the plans by the Planning Board. Certification of the plans
is required prior to commencement of any site work, any construction on the site or
issuance of a building permit.

1.

8.

9.

There appears to be a discrepancy between the amount of office space in the
basement of Phase 1 on the site plan and the architectural drawings submitted to
the building department. The applicant shall update the plans as necessary to
address this discrepancy, and verify that the site has sufficient parking to meet the
requirements of the zoning ordinance.

The applicant shall provide a landscape plan, updated with the proposed
amendments, as required by the regulations.

The applicant shall revise the “future” parking areas on the site plan, consistent with
what has actually been constructed on site at this time.

The applicant shall provide all appropriate signage details for the revised signage in
the plan set as required by the regulations, and obtain approval of the sign design
from the Heritage Commission.

The applicant shall provide documentation from the Fire Department and the
propane company relative to the approval of the proposed location of the relocated
underground propane tanks for the Planning Department’s file.

Note all waivers granted on the plan (with conditions).

The Applicant shall provide a digital (electronic) copy of the complete final plan sent
to the Town at the time of signature by the Board in accordance with Section 2.05.n
of the regulations.

Financial guaranty if necessary.

Final engineering review

PLEASE NOTE - Once these precedent conditions are met and the plans are certified

the approval is considered final. If these conditions are not met within 120 days to the day
of the meeting at which the Planning Board grants conditional approval the board's
approval will be considered to have lapsed and re-submission of the application will be
required. See RSA 674:39 on vesting.

GENERAL AND SUBSEQUENT CONDITIONS

All of the conditions below are attached to this approval.



NRRRRRRRRP R
COWONOUIRAWNROOONOUITRWNEF

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

N
-~

WWWWN N
WN P O WO

W W w
o 01 b

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 11 of 14

No construction or site work may be undertaken until the pre-construction
meeting with Town staff has taken place, filing of an NPDES-EPA Permit (if
applicable) and the site restoration financial guaranty is in place with the
Town. Contact the Department of Public Works to arrange for this meeting.

The project must be built and executed exactly as specified in the approved
application package unless modifications are approved by the Planning Department
& Department of Public Works, or if staff deems applicable, the Planning Board.

All of the documentation submitted in the application package by the applicant and
any requirements imposed by other agencies are part of this approval unless
otherwise updated, revised, clarified in some manner, or superseded in full or in part.
In the case of conflicting information between documents, the most recent
documentation and this notice herein shall generally be determining.

All site improvements must be completed prior to the issuance of a certificate of
occupancy. In accordance with Section 6.01.d of the Site Plan Regulations, in
circumstances that prevent landscaping to be completed (due to weather conditions
or other unique circumstance), the Building Department may issue a certificate of
occupancy prior to the completion of landscaping improvements, if agreed upon by
the Planning & Public Works Departments, when a financial guaranty (see forms
available from the Public Works Department) and agreement to complete
improvements are placed with the Town. The landscaping shall be completed within
6 months from the issuance of the certificate of occupancy, or the Town shall utilize
the financial guaranty to contract out the work to complete the improvements as
stipulated in the agreement to complete landscaping improvements. No other
improvements shall be permitted to use a financial guaranty for their
completion for purposes of receiving a certificate of occupancy (Per the
waiver granted by the Board, finished paving shall be permitted to use a
financial guaranty with the condition the finished pavement be in place on site
by May 1, 2008).

As built site plans must to be submitted to the Public Works Department prior to the
release of the applicant’s financial guaranty.

It is the responsibility of the applicant to obtain all other local, state, and federal
permits, licenses, and approvals which may be required as part of this project (that
were not received prior to certification of the plans). Contact the Building Department
at extension 115 regarding building permits.

J. Paradis seconded the motion. No discussion. Vote on the motion: 7-1-0. Plan
conditionally approved.

P o i o i D~ S N VS N OS]
OCO~NOUITRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

a
o

F.  Elliot Health Systems, Map 6, Lot 73 - Application Acceptance and Public Hearing for a
condominium conversion (medical offices).

T. Thompson stated that there are no checklist items, and staff recommends the
application be accepted as complete.



NRRRRRRRRRE R
COWONOUIRARWNROOONOUTRAWN K

NDNDNNNN
OO WN PR

WWWWN NN
WN P OWOoN

W W w
o 01 b

P o i o D~ S N YN N OS]
OCOoO~NOUITRRWNEFPLPOOOOLN

a
o

Planning Board Meeting
Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 12 of 14

P. DiMarco made a motion to accept the application as complete. R. Nichols
seconded the motion. No discussion. Vote on the motion: 8-0-0.

K. Rhodes presented their plans.

J. Trottier read the DPW/Vollmer memo with staff recommendations.
T. Thompson said staff recommends approval.

A. Rugg asked for public input.

B. Mazzaglia, abutter, asked how many phases there are.

T. Thompson said there are three phases planned.

P.DiMarco made a motion to conditionally approve the condominium conversion
with the following conditions:

"Applicant”, herein, refers to the property owner, business owner, or organization
submitting this application and to his/its agents, successors, and assigns.

PRECEDENT CONDITIONS

All of the precedent conditions below must be met by the Applicant, at the expense of the
Applicant, prior to certification of the plans by the Planning Board. Certification of the plans
is required prior to commencement of any site work, any construction on the site or
issuance of a building permit.

1.

The Applicant’s certification on sheets C1, CSP1 and CSP2 indicates this application
for condominium is not a subdivision, which is inconsistent with the definition per
section 1.04 of the Town'’s Subdivision Regulations and per RSA 672:14. The
Applicant shall review and revise the certification accordingly.

The Applicant shall address the following on sheet CSP1.:

A.

The Applicant shall verify if a NHDES subdivision approval is required for this
application with NHDES and obtain the permit, if applicable. The Applicant
shall provide a copy of the permit approval to the Planning Department for their
files and note the approval number on the plan.

The Applicant shall note the tax map and lot number of the subject parcel and
clarify in note 7 which plans (sheets) are to be recorded and which are on file at
the Town in accordance with the regulations.

The Applicant shall indicate the green area setback on the plan in accordance
with the regulations.

The Applicant shall provide the location and dimensions (ties) to the existing
building locations and other existing site improvements on this sheet in
accordance with RSA 356-B:20 |, as applicable. In addition, the Applicant shall
label all common areas (parking areas, etc) on the plan.

The Applicant shall indicate the location of the septic systems on the plan in
accordance with the regulations.

The Applicant shall verify the proposed text on all the condominium unit plans
(sheets Al through A-11) meets the approval of the Registry of Deeds. It appears
some the text is difficult to read especially on sheet A11. In addition, the Applicant
shall correct “common” area for phase Il F-2 as noted in the lower left hand corner
on sheet A11 and update all other sheets accordingly.



NRRRRRRRRP R
COWONOUIRAWNROOONOUTRWNRF

N NN
WN -

WWWWNDNNDNDNDN
WNPFPOWOWOO~NO O~

W W w
o 01 b

ARAADRNDPWWW
ORRWNEFPOOOLON

Planning Board Meeting

Wednesday 01/10/07-FINAL Page 13 of 14

4.  The Applicant shall address the DRC comments of the Assessing Department as
applicable.

5. Note all waivers granted on the plan (if applicable).

6. Outside consultant’s fees shall be paid within 30 days of approval of plan.

7. The Applicant shall provide a digital (electronic) copy of the complete final plan sent
to the Town at the time of signature by the Board in accordance with Section 2.06.N
of the regulations.

8.  Financial guaranty if necessary.

9. Final engineering review.

PLEASE NOTE - Once these precedent conditions are met and the plans are certified

the approval is considered final. If these conditions are not met within 2 years to the day of
the meeting at which the Planning Board grants conditional approval the board's approval
will be considered to have lapsed and re-submission of the application will be required.
See RSA 674:39 on vesting.

GENERAL AND SUBSEQUENT CONDITIONS

All of the conditions belo